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Inciependent Audiors Report

To the Members of Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited (the
“Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.
b.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(ii)

the Note 36(vi)(a) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit
report that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 36(vi)(b) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company
shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below,
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited

the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software:

i. atthe database level to log any direct data changes.

ii. atthe application level for certain fields/ tables relating to all the significant financial processes;
and

iii. for certain changes at the application level which were performed by users having privileged
access rights.

Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled, we did not come across any instance of
audit trial feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trial where enabled, has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

S GeBre

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 18 September 2025 ICAI UDIN:25060573BMOKGO3604
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31
March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper

(B)

(i) (b)

(i) (a)

(b)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant
and Equipment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).
Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically verified by the management during
the year.For goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory
records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31
March 2025 (Continued)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(f)

the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods and are of the opinion that prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not
carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are
accurate or complete.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs
or Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or
Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term loans during the year and the term loans
obtained in the previous periods were fully utilised in the respective periods. Accordingly, clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary as defined under
the Act. Further, the Company did not have any associates or joint ventures (as defined under
the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31
March 2025 (Continued)

(x) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

()

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(d)

(xvii)

report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiary (as defined under the Act). Further, the Company did not have any associates or
joint ventures (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated for the Company. As represented to us by
the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received during the year under the
vigil mechanism established voluntarily by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company is
not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138 of the Act. However, the
Company has an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its
business except that internal audit has only been completed for part of the year.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Resterve Bank of India.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended) does not
have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 196 millions in the current financial year and Rs.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31
March 2025 (Continued)

168 millions in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

ol

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 18 September 2025 ICAI UDIN:25060573BMOKGO3604
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31
March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

o

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Aequs Force
Consumer Products Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited for the year ended 31
March 2025 (Continued)

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

G

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 060573
Date: 18 September 2025 ICAI UDIN:25060573BMOKGO3604
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Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited

Balance Sheet

(All amounts are in INR millions, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 () 198 230
Right-of-use assets 4(iii) 260 371
Capital work in progress 4 (ii) - 30
Intangible assets 5() 5 4
Financial assets
Investments 6 (i) - -
Other financial assets 6 (vi) 100 107
Deferred tax assets (net) 23 - .
Current tax assets 1 1
Other non-current assets 7() 3 8
Total non-current assets 567 751
Current assets
Inventories 8 90 218
Financial assets
Trade receivables 6 (ii) 51 95
Cash and cash equivalents 6 (iii) 22 2
Bank balances other than above 6 (iv) . 4
Loans 6 (v) - 4
Other financial assets 6 (vi) 3 0
Other current assets 7(it) 6 15
Total current assets 172 338
Total assets 739 1,089
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 9 1575 1525
Instrument entirely equity in nature 9A 203 203
Other equity 10 (1,511) (1,299)
Total equity 267 429
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities B
Lease liabilities 4(iii) 296 414
Other financial liabilities 14 - 25
Provision for employee benefits 11 0 2
Total non-current liabilities 296 441




Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited
Balance Sheet
(All amounts are in INR millions, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901

Notes As at As at
March 31.2025 March 31, 2024
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12 (i) 71 48
Lease liabilities 4(iii) 60 58
Trade payables 12 (i)
a. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 0 0
b. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 21 71
small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 12 (iii) 20 29
Provision for employee benefits 11 0 2
Other current liabilities 14 1 2
Contract liabilities 13 3 9
Total current liabilities 176 220
Total liabilities 472 660
Total equity and liabilities 739 1,089
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W100022

Sampad Guha Thakurta
Partner

Membership No.: 060573
Place: Chenpat

Date: [ 8]04) 2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited
CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901
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/

Basavant Annappa Patil
Additional Director
DIN:07626985

Place: Belagavi

Date: September 1 8, 2025
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Additiond Director

DIN:09402216

Place: Belagavi

Date: September I 8, 2025

Chaitanya Vinayak Bhat
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A61933
Place: Bengaluru

Date: September I 8, 2025



Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901
Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amountis are in INR millions, except share dala, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income
Revenue from operations 15 212 623
Other income 16 40 25
Total income (A) 252 648
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 17 92 329
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods 18 54 -42
Employee benefits expense 19 42 105
Net Impairment losses on financial assets n 1
Other expenses 20 142 312
Total expenses (B) 329 705
Earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional 7 57
items and tax (A-B)
Finance costs 22 49 66
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 113 124
Loss before exceptional items and tax (239) (247)-
Exceptional items
Deferred business consideration no longer required written back 26 25 -
Loss before tax (214) (247)
Income tax expense
- Current tax 23 % =
- Deferred tax 23 - -
Total tax expense - =
Loss for the year (214) (247)
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations il 1 0

- Income tax relating to these items - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 1 0
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (213) (247)
Eamings per equity share 31 (1.21 (1.58)
(Basic & Diluted in INR) (Nominal value per share: INR 10 )
Summarv of material accounting policies &
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited
Firm Registration Number : 101248 W/W 100022 CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901
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Sampad Guha Thakurta Basaverk Annappa Patil Basa\njsmdnlingﬂppa Sugandhi  Chaitanya Vinayak Bhat
Partner Additional Director Additional Director Company Secretary
Membership No.: 060573 DIN:07626985 DIN:09402216 Membership No.: A61933
Place: (henp QI. Place: Belagavi Place: Belagavi Place: Bengaluru

Date: !ﬁ’MJZp').S Date: September [ 8, 2025  Date: September I 8, 2025 Date: September I 8, 2025



Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity

(All amounts are in INR millions. except share data, unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901

A. Equity share capital

Note Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2023 1,218
Changes during the year 9 307
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,525
Changes during the year 9 50
Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,575
B. Other equity (refer note 10)
: Other equity
Reserves and surplus
. . Securities Common. Equity m.)mponent (.)f Total other equity
Retained earnings . control capital | Other reserve | compulsorily convertible
premium
reserve debentures
Balance as at April 01, 2023 (1,096) 12 21 [3 108 (949)
Loss for the year (247) - e ¢ A (247
QOther comprehensive income/(loss)for the vear 0 . . > - 0
Total comprehensive loss for the vear (247) - - - - (247)
Transactions with owners of the company
Premium on shares issued during the year - 4 . - - 4
Share issue expenses - 3) 3 - - 3)
Reclassification of compulsorily convertible o - - (108) (108),
debentures to equitv (refer note 10(e))
Total contributions and distributions - 1 - - (108) (107)
Financial puarantee received during the vear - - - 4 - 4
Sub tatal = 3 = 4 2 4
Balance as at March 31. 2024 (1.343)) 13 21 10 ~ (1.299)
Loss for the year (214) . - - - (214)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1 - - - - 1
Total comprehensive loss for the year (213), - - - - (213)
Finance guarantee received during the year - - 1 - 1
Sub total B - d 1 s 1
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (1,556)| 13 21 11 - (1,511)

Summary of Malerial accounting policies (Note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W 100022

Sampad Guha Thakurta
Partner

Membership No.: 060573
Place: ( henpat

bate [ 8]0a) 2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited
CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901
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Additional Director
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Date: September 1 8 2025
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Chaitanya Vinayak Bhat
Company Secretary
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Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 1 8 2025




Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow

(All amounts are in INR millions, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U28191KA2018PTC 114901

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (214) (247)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 113 124
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (19) 0
Liabilities no longer required written back (10) (16)
Deferred business consideration no longer required (25)
Unrealised exchange gain 2) (2)
Provision for slow moving inventory 18 22
Bad debts written off 0 0
Net impairment losses on financial assets (1) 1
Finance cost 49 66
Unwinding of discount on security deposit (6) (5)
97) 57
Working capital adjustments
- Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 45 -22
- Decrease / (increase) in inventories 111 43
- Decrease in other financial assets 10 4
- Decrease in other assets 19 7
- (Decrease) in trade payables 39 (119)
- (Decrease) / increase in other financial liabilities (14) 2
- (Decrease) in other liabilities n 0)
- (Decrease) / increase in contract liabilities (6) 5
- (Decrease) / increase in provision for employee benefits _@ 1
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 24 (222)
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 0 (1)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A) 24 (223)
Cash flow from investing activities
Acqusition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (] 2)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 15 1
Proceeds from maturity of bank deposits 4 0
Interest received - 2
Investments in subsidiaries and associates - 0
Loan given to related parties - 4)
Repayment of loan from related parties 4 0
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (B) 22 (3)
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Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow

(All amounts are in INR millions. except share data. unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 50 215
Share issue expenses - )
Proceeds from related party borrowing 70 95
Repayments of related party borrowing = 0
Proceeds from / (repayment of) short term borrowings (net) (48) (22)
Principal payments of lease liabilities (53) (48)
Finance cost paid (45) (60}
Net cash (used in) /generated from financing activities (C) (2=§] 178
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents(A+B+C) 20 (48)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2 50
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer Note 6 (iii)) 22 2
Cash and cash equivalents conprise the following (Refer note 6(iii))
Balances with banks
-current accounts 2 1
-deposits with original maturity of three months or less 20 !
Cash on hand 0 0
Total cash and bank balance at the end of the year 22 2

Summary of material accounting policies (Note 2)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W 100022

Sampad Guha Thakurta
Partner
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Acqus Force Consumer Products Privatc Limited CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901
Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts are in INR millions, except share data, unjess otherwise stated)
——

i. Background

Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited (‘the Company') was mcarporated on July 19,2018 under the Companies Act 2013, in India. The Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Aequs Limited (Fermerly known as Acqus Private Limited). The Company has its registered office in Aequs SEZ, Hattargi Village, Taluka Hukkeri, Beigaum,
Karnataka and is cengaged in the husiness of manufacturing engineered plastic products,

2. Summary of material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of thesc financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companics

The Company has opted for exemption from preparing the consolidated financial statements as per the applicable accounting standards, as the consolidated financial statements
are prepared by the holding tompany, Aequs Limited ( formerly known as Aequs Private Limited).

(ii) Historical cost convention

*  share-based paymenis
*  defined benefit obligations

(iii) The Company has incurred 10ss 01 % 214 for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31,2024: 2 24 7) and has accumulated losses of T 1,556 as at that date (March 31, 2024: 2
1,343), Notwithstanding zeoumulaled losses, as on March 31, 2025, the net worth of the Company is ¥ 267 (March 31, 2024: ¥ 429) and j1s current linbilities exceed its current
assets by 24 for the year ended March 31, 2025, March 31 2024: current assets exceed its current liabilitics by 2119, The management of the company believes that the Company
will be able 10 continue 1o Operate as a going concern for the foreseeable [uture and meet al| its liabilities as they fall dye for payment based on its future cash flow projection and
support letter from the Holding Company.

{iv) New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

Ministry of Corporate Afthirs ("MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
fime to time, During year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments 10 Ind AS 116 ~ Leases, relating 1o sale and Icaschack
transaciions, applicable to the Company w.ef, April [, 2024, The ¢ ‘ompany has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on s evaluation has determined thar it does not
have any significant mpact in its financial statements,

(v) Operating cycle

Based on the nature of products/aciivities of the Company and the normal lime between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cyele as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

(vi) Accounting policy on EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on Division [ - [nd AS Schedule 111 1o the Companies Act 2013, the Company has clected 1g present camings before interest, 1ax, depreciation
and amortization (EBITDA) as 4 separate line item on the face of the Statement of profit and loss, The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing
operations. In its measurement, the Company docs not include depreciation and amoritizalion expense, finance costs. share of net profiv(loss) of assuciate and joinl ventures
accounied for using the equity method net of tax, exceptional ilems gain/ (loss) and income tax expenses,

(b) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic enviconment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR / ?). which is the Company's functional and presenlation currency. All amounts have been rounded 1o the
nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

(c) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Fareign currency transactions are transtated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign cxchange 2ains and losses resulting (rom
the settlement of such Iransactions and (rom the teanslation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss, Foreign exchange differences in respect of borrowings are presented in the siatement of profit and loss, within finance costs,

Allcther foreign eschange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profjy and Loss on a net basis within other gzins/ (losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value ina foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was determined,

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)




Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901

Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when conirol ol products has transferred o cusfomers and there are no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Control of products is considered to be transferred al a point-in-linte when goods have been dispatched or delivered, as per the terms agreed with the customer, s thay is when the
legal title, physical possession and risks and rewards of goods transfers to the customers,

The Company does not have any contracts where the period between the transfer of gouds or services 1o the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one ycar.
Accordingly, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for time value of morney.

As a practical expedient, the Company has opted not to disclose the information in respect of performance obligations that arc part of contracts that has an original expected
duration of one year or less.

conditional upon acts other than passage of lime. When the payment exceeds the value of goods supplied or services rendered, a contract liability (advance from customers) is
realizable,

(e) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate applicable adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities altributable to temporary differsnees and to unused tax losses.

The eurrent income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substanti vely enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subjeet 1o interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation autnerity
will aceept an uncertain tax treatment. The Comparny measures its tax balances cither based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides
a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty:

The Company is entitled 1o a 1ax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. Accordingly. no deferred 1ax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary
differences which reverse during the 1ax holiday peried, 1o the gxtent the Company’s gross total income is subject 1o the deduction during the 1ax holiday period. Deferred tax in
respect of temporary differences which reverse afier the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate. However, the Company restricts
recognition of deferred tax assels to the extent it is probable that sufficient fiture taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assers can be realized. For
recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred rax assels are re-assessed at cach reporting dale and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable Ihat future txable profits will allow the deferred tax assel to be recovered.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the vear. The deferred tax asser is recogmized for MAT credit
available only to the extent that it is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specificd period, i.e., the period for which MAT credii is allowed to be
carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an assel, it is created by way of eredit 1o the statement ol profit and loss and shown as part of
deferred tax asset. The Company reviews the “MAT credit enit lement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will
pay normal tax during the speeified period.

(f) Leases

l.eases are recognized as a Right-ol-use asset and a carresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both
lease and non-lease componenis. The Company allocates the censideration in the contract o the lease and non-leuse components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Company is u lessee. it has elected not 1o scparate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these 2s a single lease
Component,

The lease liobility is initially measured ar the present value of the lease paymems that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case [or leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
ndividual lessee would have 10 pay to borrow the funds necessary 10 oblain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a simifar ¢eonomic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments. residual value gharantees, exercisc price of a purchase oplion where the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of panalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee cxercising an option to terminate the
lease,

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Variable lezse payments that depend on sales are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

* the amount of initial measurement of lease liability,

* any lease payments made on or before the commencement date less an y lease incenlives received,

* any imitial direct costs, and

¢ Testoration costs

Right-of-use assels are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in the statement of profit and loss, Short-term
leases are leases with a term of 12 months o less.




Acqus Force Consumer Products Private Limited CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901

Notes to the financial statcments
(All amounts are in INR millions, except share data, unless otherwise stated)

(g) Impairment of assets

Assessment is done whenever there is an event or change in circumstances as to where there is any indicalion that an asset (1angible and mtangible) may be irpaired. For the
purpose of assessing impairment; the smallest identifiable group of assels that generates cash inflows from conlinuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of asset, is considercd as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimale of the recoverable amount of the asset cagh generating unit is
made. Assets whosc carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are wrilten down to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher ol an asset's fair value
less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expecled 1o arise from the continuing use of an asset and from irs disposal at
the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet datc 2s to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior
accounting perinds may no longer exist or may have decreased. Non financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end ol
each reporting period.

(h) Cash and cash cquivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held al call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of’
changes in valuc, and bank overdraits. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

i) Inventories
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost of raw malerials comprises cost of purchases net of rebates and discounts. Cost of work-in progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labor and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual itemns on weighted average basis.

The comparison of cost and net realizabls value is made on an item-by-item basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Provisions are made towards slow-moving and obsolcte items based on historical experience of utilization on a product category basis, which includes the consideration of product
lines and market conditions and ageing of inventory.

j- Financial Instruments —

(). Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflects Company's unconditional right 1o
consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of lime). Trade receivables are recognized initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant Ninancing
components. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of colleeling the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequent] v al amortized cost less
loss allowance.

(ii). Investment in subsidiary

In accordance with [nd AS 27, the Company measures its investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment losses, i any.

(iii) Other financial assets

(i). Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

» those to e measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

*  those measured al amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assels measured al fair value, ains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

(ii) Initial recognition

The Company recognizes inancial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contracual provisions of the insirument. All financial assels and liabilities are
recognised at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisitien or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added 1o or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition.

(iii) Subscquent measurement

(3) Financial assets measured at amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
mierest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assels is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOC):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair valuc through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognilion of impairment gains
or Iusses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assels is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method, Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other expenses and impairment expenses in other expenses.

(¢) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (F'VTPL):
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCT are measured at fair valuc through profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income.




Acqus Force Consumer Products Private Limited CiN: U28191KA201BPTC114901

Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, except share data, unless atherwise stated)

j. Financial Instruments(cont'd)
(iv) Impairment of financial asset

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credil losses associated with ils assets carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 25 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk,

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach required by [nd AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables. Refer Note 25.

(v)  Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

= relains the contractual rights 1o receive the cash flows of the fnancia] asset, bul assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows 1o One or more recipients,

Where the entity has transferred an assct, the Company evaluales whether it has transferrcd substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assct, [n such cases,
the financial asset is derccognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assct, the financial asset is not
derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the
Company has nol retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised (o the extent of
continuing involvement in (he financial asset.

(vi) Income recognition

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through prafit and loss is disclosed as interest income within other ncome. Interest income from financjal assets at amorlized
cost is calculated using the effective interest method and js recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of finance income.

(vii) Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates

The management assesses the performance of these entitics including the future projections, relevant cconomic and market conditions in which they operate tg identify if there is
any indicator of impairment in the carrying value of the investments, In case indicators of impairment exist, the impairment loss is measured the higher of

(1) “fzir value less cost of disposal’ determined using market price information, where available, and

{ii) "value-in-use’ estimates recoverable amounts determined using discounted cash flow projections, where available, The fair value less costs of disposal is determined using rthe
market approach. The future cash flow projections are specific to the entity bused on its business plan-and may not be the same as those of market parhicipants, The future cash
flows consider key assumptions such as revenue projections, EBITDA, terminal growth rates, eic. with due consideration for the potential risks piven the eurrent economic
environment in which the entity operates. The discount rates used with required 1ax rates based on weighted average cost of capilal and reflects marker's assessment of the risks
specific o the asset as well as time value of money. The recoverable amount estimates are based an Judgments, estimates, assumptions and market data as on reporting date and
ignore subsequent changes in the economic and market conditions.

(viif) Financial labilities

Financia! liabilities are subsequently carried al amortized cosL using Lhe effeclive interest rate method, For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance
sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments,

(ix) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair valye, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference hetween the proceeds
{nel of transaction costs) and the redemption amouni is recogatsed in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interost method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan ficilities are recognised as transaction ¢osts of the loan 1o the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down: In this case, the
fee is deferred uniil the draw down veeurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee 15 capitalized as a
prepayment for liquidity serviees and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates,

Borrowings are classified as currant liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Where there is a breach of a materiy| provision of & long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on
demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classily the liability as current, if the lender agreed, afier the reporting period and befare the approval of the financial statements
for issue, not to demand piyment as a consequence of the breach,

(x) Borrcwing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are direcily auribulable 1o (he acquisition, constriction or production of a qualifying assel are capitalized during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its inlended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets thar aecessarily take a subsiantial period of 1ime Lo get ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible [or capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(xi) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is feparted in the balance sheet where thers is 2 legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an mntention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankrupiey of the Company or the caunterparty.
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Jj- Financial lnstruments(cont'd)

(xii) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts arc recognized as a financial lizbility at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fzir value and subsequently at the higher
ol the (i) amount determined in aceordance with the expected credit loss model as per Ind AS 109 and the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount
of income recognized in aecordance with the principles Ind AS 115, The fair value of financial guaraniees is determined as the presen: value of the difference in net cash flows
petween the conractyal payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that woyld be payable to a
third party for assuting the obligation,

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of other entities are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognized as
part of the cost of the investmens,

(xiii) Compound financial instruments

In non-derivative compound Instruments, the Company classifics the liability and cquity components of the instrument separately as a financial liability and equity. The Company
first determines the fair value of the liability component, and allocates 1o the equity component the residual amount after deducting the fair value of the financial Kability
component from the fair value of the entire compound instrument. Subsequent (o iniial recognition, the Liability component of a compound financial instrumeny is measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently

(k) Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that s directly attributable (0 the acquisition of the

Subsequent costs are included in the assel's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allacate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives:
The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Asset Useful life adopted by the Company (in|Useful life as per Schedule 11
years) (in years)

Oflice cquipment 1 year to 10 years 5 years

Leasehold improvements 10 years or lease period, whichever is lower Not applicable

Plant and machinery [ year to 10 years 810 15 years

Computer equipment 3 years 3 to 6 years

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management which are equal 1o or lower than those specificd by Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the ‘assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the assst. The asscts” residual values and uscful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Assels in the course ol'development or construction are not depreciated,

Depreciation commences when the assels are ready for their intended use. An asser's carrying amount is written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount if the asset’s
CarTying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in statement of profit and loss within other gains/ (losses). When significant spare parts of an item ol property, plant and cquipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of nroperty. plant and equipment

(1) Intangible assets

An intangible asset shal] be measured initially at cost. Intangible assets include Computer software. Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are capitalized as an
expense as incurred.

The Company amortizes intangible assets with finite useful life using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives :

Computer software 1-10 years

(m) Provisions

Provisions are meusured at the present value of manugement's best estimae of the expenditure required to s
discount rate used to determine the present valye I3 @ pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessm
increase in provision due to passage of time is recognised as an interest expense,
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(n) Employee benefits
(i)  Short-term obligations

Liabilities for sularies wages, bonus, accumulated Jeaves including non-monetary benelits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the feporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities zre presented as current employee benefi obligations in the balance sheet,

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability recogaised in the balance sheet in respect of leave obligations s the present value of the obligation at the end of the reporting period. The liability is calculated
annually by independen: actbaries using the projected unit credi method. Leave ubligations are presented as current liabilitiss in the balance sheet since the entity does not have
an unconditional right 16 defer settlement for at least twelve months afier the feporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expeetad to oceur,

(i) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-cmployment schemes:

(@) defined benefit plans i.c. gratuity; and

(b) defincd coniribution plans i.c. provident fund and Employee state insurance (ESI).

(2) Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balanee sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined
benefit obligation is caleulated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method, The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determineg by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to marker yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds thai have terms approximating to the lerms of
the related obligation.

The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statemen
of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and lesses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income, Theyare included in retained eamnings in the stalement of changes in tquity and in the balance sheet.

(b) Defined Conribution Plans:

The Company pays provident fund contributions o Employecs' Provident Fund Organization ang ESI contributions to Employees’ State Insurance Corporation ps per local
regulations, Th Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounied for as defined contribution plans and the
coniributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are dye, Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset 1o the extent that a cash refund or g reduction in the
future payments is available.

(iv) Share-based paymenis

Share-based compensation bencefits ("options") are provided o employees through the Aequs Private Limited Employee Stock Option Plan ("plan™). This plan is assessed,
managed and administered by Acqus Private Limited,

- Including any market performance conditions (e.g.. the entity's share price), and

- including the impact of any servige and non-market performance vesting conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied, At the end of each period, the
entity revises ils estimates of the number ol options that are expeeted to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision to
original estimates, i any, n profit or joss, witha corresponding adjustment 10 equity.

(0) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share s calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period altributable 10 equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equily shares
Outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of caleulating dijuted eamings per share, the et profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shareg
outslanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilytjve potential equity shares.

(p) Exceptional items

Exeeptional items are malerial items of income or €xpenses that are disclosed separately due to the significance of their nature Or amount, to provide further understanding of the
financial performance of the Company.

Note: 3

Estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements. in conformity with Ingd AS requires estimates and Jjudgements that affet the reported amounts of assets and liabilitics, revenues angd
expenses, and related disclosures of contingent liabilities in e financial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are used for, but not limited to uselul lives of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, share-based compensation, defined benefic obligations, impairmen( of investments in subsidiaries and estimation of deferred lax
expenses’benefits, Acwal resulis could difter materially from these estimates,
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(Al amounts are in INR millions. except share data. unless otherwise siared)
4 (1) Property. plant and cquipment
Office Leasehold Plant and Computer

Particulars . ; " = Total
cquipment |improvements| machinery equipment

Gross block

As at April 01, 2023 9 10 452 10 481
Additions 0 . 5 . 5
Disposals - - (13 = (1}
As at March 31, 2024 9 10 455 10 485
Addilions I - 31 0 32
Disposals (0 (0Y (26) - 27
As at March 31, 2025 10 10 460 10 490
Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2023 6 2 185 7 200
Charge for the year ! ! 52 ! 55

Dispasals - - (1) - (1)
As at March 31, 2024 J 3 237 8 255
Charge for the year 1 | 46 1 49
Disposals (1)) (1)) (12) = (12)
As at Mareh 31, 2025 8 4 271 9 292
Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2024 2 7 219 1 230
As at March 31, 2025 2 6 189 1 198
Refer to Note 33 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security.

4 (i) Capital work in progress (CWIP)

Particulars Amount

As at April 01, 2023 31

Additions 1
Capiialised during the year (2)
As at March 31. 2024 30
Additions 0
Capitalised durine the year (30}
As at March 31, 2025 -

(a) Agcing of Capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2025
Amounts in Capital wark-in-progress
SiSulds Less than | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
year
Project in progress = - " = -
(b) Ageing of Capital work-in-progress as at Mareh 31, 2024
Amounts in Capital work-in-progress
FEGHENIEES Lesz:::n ! 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Project in progress . 30 - - 30

(This space is fntentionally lefi blank)
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4(iii) Right-ol-use assets
The Company has entered into agreements with lessors for taking factory and office premises on lease. The lease lerm is for a period of 10 years with escalation clauses
in the lease agreements of preinises.

Particulars Building Total

Gross block

As at April 01,2023 680 680
Additions - -
Disposals (D 0]
As at March 31, 2024 679 679
Additions . .
Disposals* (68) (6R)
As at March 31, 2025 611 611
Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01,2023 239 239
Charge for the year 69 69
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 308 308
Charge for the year 63 63
| Disposals* (20 (201
As at March 31, 2025 351 351
Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2024 371 371

As at March 31, 2025 260 260

*Disposed on account of lease surrender

Company's lease liabilities, by maturity, are as follows

(i) Lease liability

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current 60 58
Non-cument 296 414
Total 356 472

(i) Maturity analysis (undiscounted lease payments) :

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1.ess than one year 92 103
Between one and five years 351 492
After five years > 25
Total minimum lease payments 443 620
Less: imputed interes 87 148
Present value of lease payments 356 472

(iii) The following are the amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss and statement of cash flows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 63 69
Intercst expensc on lease liabilities 41 50
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) 0 1
Cash flow for leases (principal and interest) 94 98

T (This space is intentionally left blank)
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5 (i) Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software Total
Gross block

As at April 01, 2023 10 10
Additions )
Disposals = -
As at March 31, 2024 10 10
Additions 1 1
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2025 11 11
Accumulated amortization

As at April 01, 2023 5 5
Charge for the year 0 0
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 5 5
Charge for the year 1 1
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2025 6 6
Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2024 4 4
As at March 31, 2025 5 5

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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6 Financial assets

6 (i) Non-current investments As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted, at cost)
Investment in subsidiary
Aequs Force Technology Company Limited, Hong Kong - [Nil (March 31. 2024:10,000) equily shares of
HKD 1 cach fully paid up] - i}
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - 0
Apgrepate amount of unquoted investments - 0
Less: Impairment in the value of investments = ()]
Total non-current investments d -
6 (ii) Trade receivables
(Unsecured)
Trade receivables from other than related parties (considered good) 12 89
Receivables from related parlies (refer ncte 29) 40 8
Less: Loss allowance (refer note 25) {1 (2)
Total trade receivables 51 95
Ageing of trade receivables as at March 31,2025
Outstanding for following periods from due date
ti h -
Particulars Not due Less than 6 | 6 months-1 -2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
months year
Undisputed trade receivables
Considered pood 4 39 5 3 1 52
4 39 5 3 - 1 52
Less: Loss allowance - o - [€)) 1
Unbilled revenue " ! i i - . b
4 35 5 3 - - 51
Ageing of trade receivables as at March 31, 2024
Qutstanding for following periods from due date
ti N -
Particulars Not due Less than 6 | 6 months-1 iyears 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months year
Undisputed trade receivables
Considered good 691 22 1 | 1 - 94
69 22 1 1 1 - 94
Less: Loss allowance - - - 2 )
Unbilled revenue 3 - . - - * 3
71 22 1 1 (1) - 95
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As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

6 (iii) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

-in current accounts 2 |
-Deposits wilh original maturity of 3 months or less 20 |
Cash on hand 0 0
22 2
6 (iv) Bank balances other than above
Margin money deposits - 4
- 4
Note:
Margin money deposits are against 'Letters of Credit,’ issued in favor of vendors for import of materials.
6 (v) Loans
Current (unsecured, considered good)
Loan lo related parlies* - 4
- 4
* 1.0an provided to Koppal Toys Molding COE Private Limited was repayable on demand and has been repaid in the current year. Refer note 29
6 (vi) Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)
Non-current
Security deposits 100 107
100 187
Current
Recoverable from related parties (refer note 29) 3 0
Interest accrued on deposits (0) 0
3 0
7 Other assets
(i) Non-current
Capital advances i 5
Prepaid expenses 2 3
3 B

(ii) Current
Advance to suppliers 4
Advance to employees 0
Prepaid expenses 2 4
Balances with government authorities 0
[

8 Inventories

Raw materials (includes Goods in transit : Nil (March 31,2024: 24)) 68 153
Work-in-progress 60 67
Finished goods 24 42
Stores and spares (includes Goods in transit : Nil (March 31,2024: 32) 4 5
156 267
Less: Provision for slow moving stock (refer note (it} below) (66) (49)
90 218

Note:

(i) Write-down of inventories lo nel realizable value amounted to %4 (March 31, 2024: Z3). These were recognized as an expense during the year and included in ‘changes in
inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods in statement of profit and loss

(ii) For lien/charpe against inventory refer note 33

(in) Provision for slow moving inventory includes provision in respect of:

Raw materials 33 45
Finished goods 33 4
Stores and sparcs 0 0

66 49

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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LA amonnty are in INR millions, vxee,
9 Equity share capital

t share data, inlesy othey

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Authorised equity share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each 158.000.000 1.580 156.000.000 1.560

158,000,000 1.580 156,000.000 1.560
Issued, subscribed and fully paid
Equity shares of INR 10 each 157,545,187 1,575 152,545,187 1,525

157,545,187 1,575 152,545,187 1,525
() Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount authorised at the beginning and at the end of the year :

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 156,000,000 1,560 124,000,000 1,240
Increase during the year 2,000.000 20 32.000.000 320
Outstanding at the end of the year 158,000,000 1.580 156,000,000 1.560

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares Amount () No. of shares Amount (%)
At the beginning of the year 152,545,187 1,325 121,795,662 1,218
Add: Issued during the year * 5,000,000 50 30,749,525 307
Outstanding at the end of the year 157,545,187 1,575 152,545,187 1,525

*Includes 9,223,300 equily shares issued on conversion of unsecured loan of 7 95 received from the holding company during the year ended 3] March 2024,

(iii) Terms & rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10/ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, if
any by the Board of Dircctors is subjcet to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuring Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of' liquidation
of the Company. equity share holders are eligible to receive remaining assels of the Company, after distribution of a] preferential amounts. The distribution will be jn proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

(iv) Details of shares held by holding/ultimate holding company or its subsidiaries or associates

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Aequs Limited (formerly known as Aequs Private Limited), the holding company 157,545,087 1.575 152,545,087 1,525
Aequs Enuineered Plastics Private Limited (subsidia » of holding company) 100 0 100 0
157.545.187 1575 152,545,187 1,525
(v) Details of share holders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Aequs Limited (formerly known as Aequs Private Limited) 157.545.087 100.00% 152,545,087 100.00%
157,545.087 100.00% 152.545.087 100.00%

(vi) Details of shareholding of Promoters

Name of the Promoter

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Percentage change

No. of shares | % of total number No. of shares | % of total number during the year
of shares of shares
Acqus Limited (formerly known as Acqus Privale Limited) 157,545,087 100.00% 152,545.087 100.00%, 0.00%
Aequs Engineered Plastics Private Limited 100 0.00% 100 0.00%, 0.00%

(vii) There are no shares which are reserved for issue under options and no share

(viii) There are no instances of shares allolted as fully paid by way of bonus shares and shares bought back during the current and

(This space is intentionally left plunk)
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Instruments entirely equity in nature

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Authorised T

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 20,325,300 203 20,325,300 203
20,325,300 203 20,325,300 203

Zero coupon unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

Reconciliation of the number of debentures and amount vutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :

March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares Amount (%) No. of shares Amount(ﬂ__
Balance outstanding at the beginning of the year® 20,325,300 203 20,325,300 203
Add: Issued duriny the yeur - . - -
Balance outstanding at the end of the year (Aequs Limited) 20,325,300 203 20,325,300 203
*Refer note 10(e)
5 As at As at

Other equity March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained eamings (1.556) (1,343)
Securities premium 13 13
Common control capital reserve 2] 21
Other reserve 11 10

(1,511) (1,299)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprises of prior and current Yyear’s accurnulated Josses.

(b) Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance wilh the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(¢) Commem Control Capital Reserve
Refer note 26

(d) Other reserves

Includes the fair value of the financial guarantee received from Aequs Limited (formerly known as Aequs Private Limited) (holding company) against the borrowings obtained from

(¢) Equity component of Compulsory Convertible Debentures

As-al 31 March 2023, the Company had 20,325.300 #ero coupon unsecured Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) of 210 each autstanding. These CCDs are convertible at

any time at the option of holder. subject
Based on the terms ol the conltract thar, inter-alia. required conversion of the CCD into a variable number of equily shares, the
with Tiability and equity Lomponents.

However, as at 3!
Conscquently, these were reclassified as an instrument entirely equity in nature during the year ended 31 March 2024,

(This spuce ix intentionaily lefi blunk)

10 the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company or upon expiry of 10 years from the date of allotment, if not converted earlier.
CLD was accounted for as a compound instrument

March 2024, pursuant 10 an amendment of the contraclual terms, these CCDs are convertible into a fixed number of equity shares, i.e.. on a 1:1 ratio,
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As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 Provision for employee bencfits
Non-current
Provision for gratuity 0 2
0 2
Current
Provision for gratuity 0 0
Provision for leave obligation 0 2
. 0 2

(i) Leave obligations
The entire amount of the provision of ¥ 0 (March 31, 2024: 2 2) s presented as current since the Company docs nol have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these
abligations.

(if) Defined contribution plans

The Company has defined contribution plans in the form of provident fund and employees state insurance scheme for qualifying employees. The contributions are made to provident
fund for employees at the rate of 12v of basic salary and to employees state insurance scheme at the rate of 3.25% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to
a registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amaount contributed and it has no further contractual or any constructjve
obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plans is as follow:

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provident Fund 2 4
Employees State Insurance [t} 0
2 4

(iii) Defined benefit obligations

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuily for employees in [ndia 35 per Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 2018. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 yeurs are
eligible for gratuity, The amount of graluity payuble on termination/retirement is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionalely for 15 days safary multiplied
for the number of years of service, The gratuity plan is a non-funded plan,

A. Reconciliation of the projected benefit ohligations
Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
(a) Total amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss account (Note 19)
Curent service cost I I
Interest on defined benefi obligation 0 0
Total a recognised in stat tof profit and loss (A) | 1
(b) Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains)/losses ansing from changes in
- demographic ussumptions 0) 0
- financial assumptions 0 0
- experience adjustments (h (0}
Total amount recognised in sther comprehensive income (B) (1) (0)
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income (A+B) 0 1
(c) Changes in the defined benefit obligation during the year
Obligations al the beginning of the year 2 2
Current service cost | 1
Interest cost 0 0
Benefits paid mn )
Liabililies (transferred) / assumed 4D 0
Remeasurement (gains)/ losses
- arising from change in demographic assumplions ()] 0
- urising from change in financial assumplions 0 0
-arising from change in experience adjustments ) [{1)]
Defined benefit ohligation as the end of the vear 0 2

(Thix space ix intentionally left blunk)
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As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(d) Classification
Current 0 0
Non-current 0 2
0 2
B. Actuarial assumptions
Significant actuarial assumplions
Discount rale per annum 6.95% 7.20%
Salary escalation rate per annum 10% 10%
Qther actuarial assumptions
Attrition rate
21 to 30 years 33% 23%
31 to 40 years 8% 7%
41 to 50 years 2% 3%
51 to 57 years 1% 1%
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years

Assumptions regarding mortality are based on published rates under the [ndian Assured Lives Mortaiity (2012-14) table.

C. Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit ablivation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as under:

2L LD L L

Changes in assumption

As at March 31,2025

As at March 31, 2024

Discount rate
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on increase in 50 bps
Discount rate - 50 basis points impact (%)

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on decrease in 50 bps
Discount rate -50 basis points impact (%)

Salary increase rate
Defined benefil obligation (DBO) on increase in 50 bps
[mpact of increase in 50 bps on DBO

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) on decrease in 50 bps
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO

Sensitivity analysis for cach significant actuarial assumptions namely discount rate and salary assumptions have been

showing how the defined benefit obiigation would have been affected by the changes.

The method used to calculate the liability in these scenarios is by keeping all the ether parame
stressed. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sens

The mortality and attrition does not have a significant impact on the liability hence are not considered as significant actuarial assumpticn

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation
D. Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit

vments (in million)
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shown in the table above at the end of the repurting period.

tors and the data same as in the base liabitity calculation except the paramelers 10 be
itivity analyses.

for the purpose of sensitivity analysis.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than onc ycar 0 0
Belween one and (ive years 0 1
After five vears 1 8
Tatal 1 9

Weighted average duration of the defined bencfil obligations is 14.06 years as of March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: 13.26 years)

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans. the Company is exposed to number of risks. the most stenificant of which are detailed below:

(i) Market risk (discount rate)

Market risk is a collective term for risks Lhat are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. The discou
discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on t

the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date

(ii) Longevity risk

nt rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in
he yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence

The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after. Typically for the benefits paid on or before the retirement age. the fongevity risk

is not very material.

(iii) Annual risk
Salary increase assumption

Actual Salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation, will result in increase 1o the obligation at a rale that is higher than expected

Attrition/withdrawal assumption

If aclual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption, then the benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the

benefits arc vesled as at the resignalion date.
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As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

12 (i) Borrowings
Current:
Working capital facilities rom banks (secured) (a)
Loans from related party (unsccured) (refer note 29) (b)

Note:

. 48
71 0
71 48

(a)Working capital facilities availed by the Company are repayable on demand and include Export Packing Credit (EPC) and Pre-shipment Credil in Foreign Currency (PCFC)
and Cash Credit (CC). Working capital facilities are secured by hypothecalion of invenlories. existing and fulure receivables and other current assets and exclusive charge on
plant and machineries of the Company with interest T-Bill 3 Months 6.87% + Spread 3.97% . The loan is also secured by a corporale guarantee provided by Aequs Limited

(formerly known as Aequs Private Limited). The loan has been closed during Lhe year ended 31 March 2025.

(b) Loan from related party are unsecured and repayable on demand availed from Aequs Limiled (formerly known as Acqus Privale Limited) . This loan carries an interest rate

of 12% p.a. payable monthly.

(¢) Denails of quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with the bank and reconciliation with the books of account for the year ended March 31, 2025.

1. Inventorics

1.2024:

: Particulars of | Amount as reported | Amount as per
Name of . . Amount of Reason for
Quarter Securities in the quarterly books of account . ) .
bank R R difference discrepancies
Provided return/ statemnents | (net of provision)
Jun-24 203 203 - -
Sep-24 196 196 . -
HDFC Bank I lories
Dec.2d an nvenlories 109 109 N )
Mar-25 NA NA NA NA
2, Trade Receivables
Name of Particulars of | Amount as reported | Amount as per Amount of Reason for
Quarter bank Securities in the quarterly books of account difference discrepancies
Provided return/ statements
Jun-24 67 67 = .
Sep-24 ~ -
P HDFC Bank | Trade receivables 60 ol
Dec-24 77 77 - E]
Mar-25 NA NA NA NA
(d) Details of quarterty statemenis of current assets filed by the Company with the bank and reconciliation with the books of account for the year ended March 3
1. Inventories
Name of Particulars of | Amount as reported | Amount as per Amount of Reason for
Quarter bank Securities in the quarterly books of account difference discrepancies
Pravided return/ statements | {net of provision)
Jun-23 305 274 3D
Sep-23 3 2 52 " "
i HDFC Bank Inventores 08 5? (52 Refer Note (ii)
Dec-23 297 255 (42) Below
Mar-24 206 218 12
Notes:

(i) Amount reported quarterly to a bank is excluding the provision for slow moving inventory
(1) Differences are due to adjustmenls made post submission of the slatement to the bank

2. Trade Receivables

Name ol Particulars of | Amount as reported | Amount as per Amount of Reasen for
Quarter bank Securities in the quarterl books of account difference discrepancies
q Y
Provided return/ statements
Jun-23 153 167 14
Sep-23 11 62 53 fer Note (i
2 HDFC Bank | Trade receivables > (33)  Refer Note (i)
Dec-23 58 24 (33) Below
Mar-24 91 95 4

Note:
(i) Amounts reported o the bank are excluding the balances wilh related parlies, foreign exchange adjustmenls net of advances.
(This spuce is intentionally left blank)
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As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

12 (ii) Trade payables

_ Ducs lo micro enlerprises and small enterprises ("MSME") (refer nole 32) 0 0
- Dues to related parties (refer note 29) 7 11
- Other trade payables 14 60

21 71

Ageing of trade payables as at March 31, 2025

Outstanding for following periods from due date

Particulars Not due | Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mor_e ghens Total
VEears
(i) Undisputed dues -MSME 0 . 0 - - 0
(ii) Undisputed dues -Others 0 3 5 2 ] 11
Unbilled 10 - - = - 10
10 3 5 2 1 21

Ageing of trade pavables as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date

Particula M 3 Total
articutars Not due | Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years ' 0::::‘:“
(i) Undisputed dues -MSME - - - - - -
(ii) Undisputed dues -Others B 30 4 2 1 37
Unbilled 34 - - - - 34
34 30 4 2 1 71
(iii) Other financial liabilities As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non current:

Deferred consideration payable - 25
- 25

Current:
Capital credilors | 6
Employee benefils payable - 4
Dues to related parties (refer note 29) 19 19
20 29

13 Contract liabilities

Current:

Advance from customers ! 3 9
3 9

Note:

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities as at the beginning of the period 9 4

14 Other liabilities

Current:

Statutory dues payable | 2
1 2

(This spuce s intentionally lefl blank)
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Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

15 Revenue from operations
Revenuc from contracts with customers

- Sale of products 199 598
- Sale of services 11 2]
210 619
Other operating income
- Scrap sales 2 4
2 4
212 623
Notes:
(i) There are no adjustments made to contract price
(i) There are no unsatisfied performance obligations as al reporting date,
(iii) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and Benerally carry credit period of 0 to 60 days.
(1v) Revenue from major customers are as follows:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Customers
Revenue % of total revenue Revenue % of total revenue
Customer | 109 51% 470 76%
Customer 2 73 34% 105 17%
16 Other income
Gain on derecognition of lease 19 0
Income from sub-lease of factory building 0
Liabilities no fonger required 10 16
Interest income 0 2
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 6 5
Cxchange dilferences (other than borrowings) 3 2
Miscellaneous income . 0
40 25
17 Cost of materials consumed
Raw material consumed
Opening stock 153 156
Less: Movement in provision for slow moving inventory (45) (23)
Add: Purchases during the year 19 304
Closing stock 68 153
Less: Movement in provision for slow moving inventory (33) (45)
Cost of raw materials consumed 92 329
18 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods
Inventory at the end of the year (a)
Work-in-progress 60 67
Finished goods 24 42
Movement in provision for slow moving inventory (33) (4)
51 105
[nventory at the beginning of the year (b)
Work-in-progress 67 30
Finished goods 42 35
Movement in provision for slow moving inventory 4) 3)
105 62
Change in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods (b-a) 54 (42)
19 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 33 89
Contribution to provident and other funds 2 4
Gratuity (refer note 1 1) [ |
Staff welfare expenses 6 10
42 105
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Year ended
_March 31, 2025

20 Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares
Outsourced manpower cost
Power and fuel
Subcontracting expenses
Testing charges
Freight and forwarding
Repairs and maintenance :

Machinery

Building

Others
Legal and professional fees
Payment o auditors [refer note (i) below]
Rental charges
Insurance
Printing and stationery
Rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Communication
Bank charges
Miscellaneous expenses

(i) Payments to auditors
As auditor:
- Audit fee
- Reimbursement of expenses

21 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment [refer note 4(i)]
Amortisation of intangible assets [refer note 5(i))
Depreciation of right of use assets [refer note 4(iii)]

22 Finance cost
Interest expense on borrowings
Interest expense on intercompany loans [refer note 29]
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Financial guarantee expense

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

18 38
40 128
16 33
18 25
1
3
1 2
25 30
5 5
3 25
1 2
0 1
2 3
0 i
1 1
1 2
1 3
2 4
4 2
142 312
I 2
0 0
1 2
49 55
1 0
63 69
113 124
2 10
3 2
41 50
3 4
49 66
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Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

23 Income taxes
A. Income tax expense
Current lax expense -

Deferred tax expense/(benefit) - -
Income tax expense/ (benefit) - -
B. Reconciliatinn of tax Lapense and accaunting profil multiplied by applicable tax rate
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Tax expenses under reneral provision of income tax
Loss before income tax expense (214) (247)
Tax rate 26% 20%
Tax at the above rate (56) (64)
Tax impact of permanent difference 1 (1
Tax impact on income not chargeable to tax (2) (2
Tax impact of business |oss and other items on which no deferred tax has been recognized 56 7
Total tax expense/(benefit
C. Income tax assets
Advance income tax (tax deducted/collected at source) = 1 |
| |
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was reco, nised expire as follows
, Year ended Expiry date Year ended| Expiry date
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
lEipire 202634 1.020 2025-33
Never expire - 295 -

The Company has unabsorbed depreciation of 408 (March 31, 2024- % 295 ) which does not have any expiry period.

D. Deferred tax asset recognition

Deferred tax assel on timing difference and on unabsorbed depreciation and business loss carried forward has not

cerainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient Ffuture taxable income will be available for set-off. However this position will be reasscssed at cvery year end and the

deferred tax asset will be accounted for. if appropriate.

Deferred tax assets (ner)

’P_articulars As at As at
March 31. 2025 | March 31. 2024
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortjsation (1) (9)
Rieht of use assel (68) (96
(69) (105}
Deferred tax assets
Tax losses and unabserbed depreciation 351 342
Lease liability 93 123
Pravision for inventory obsolescence 17 2
Provisions allowed on payment basis and uthers 8 21
469 498 |
Tutal - Deferred tax assers (ner) 400 393

(8) Movement in deferred fax liahilities

Depreciation and Right-of-use assets Total
amortisation
Balance at April 1,2023 (14) (115) (129)
Recognised in profit or loss . . -
Recaanised in OCI - - -
Unrecounised Deductible Temporary Differences 5 9 24
Balanee at March 31, 2024 (9) (96) (105)
Balance at April 1, 2024 9 (96) (1035)
Recognised in profit or loss - - -
Recognised in OCI . . -
Unrecoemsed Deductible Temporary Differences 8 2 36
Balance at March 3] . 2025 (1 68 (69
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23 Income taxes (continued)

(b) Movement in deferred tax assels

Carry forward Lease liability Provision for Others Total
losses and invenory
unabsorbed obsolescence
Balance at April 1, 2023 237 135 7 8 387
Recognised in profit or loss - . - - -
Recognised in OCI . . - - -
Unrecopnised Deductible Temporary Differences 105 2y 5 13 111
Balance at March 31. 2024 342 123 12 21 498
Balance at April 1, 2024 342 123 12 21 498
Recognised in profit or loss - . . .
Recognised in OCI . - - -
Unrecoenised Deductible Temporary Differences 9 30 5 (13) (29)
Balance at March 31. 2025 351 93 17 8 469

E. Transfer pricing:

For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company would be carrying out a study to comply with transfer pricing regulations for which the prescribed certificate of accountant will
be obtained. [n the opinion of management, no adjustment is expected to arise based on completion of Transfer Pricing Study.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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24 Fair value measurement

Financial instruments by category

Cat As al As al
ategory March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial assets

Investments Cost - -
Trade rcceivables Amortised cost 51 95
Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances Amortised cost 22 2
Bank balances other than above Amortised cost - 4
Loans Amortised cost - 4
Other fMnancial assets Amortised cost 103 107
Total financial assets 176 212
Financial liabilities

Borrowings Amortised cost 71 48
Lease liabilities Amortised cost 356 472
Trade payables Amortiscd cost 21 71
Other financial liabilities Amortised cost 20 54
Total financial liabilities 468 645

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair valucs of the financial instruments that are:

(a) recognised and measured at fair value.

(b) recognised and measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into different
levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (derivative mainly forward contract) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

(if) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances, loans, other financial assets, and
other financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values for interest free security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a risk frce ratc of interest.

The lease liabilities are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the

Company incremental borrowing rate s used.

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost, the carrying amounts are equal to fair values,

(iii) Significant estimates

rate cannot be readily determined, as in the casc of lease of buildings, the

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technique. The Company uses its judgement to select
a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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25 Financial risk management

®

(ii)

The Company's business activities exposes it to a variety of financial risks such as liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. The Company’s senior management under the
supervision of the Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk management and have cstablished policies to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company. They help in identification, measurement, mitigation and reporting all risks associated with the activities of the Company. These risks are
identified on a continuous basis and assesses for the impact on the financial performance. The below table broadly summarises the sources of financial risk to which the Company
is exposed to and how the Company manages the risk

Financial risk management

Exposurc arising from Measurement Management

Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, lrade|Aging analysis Diversification of bank deposits,
receivables,Other bank balances and|Credit ratings Customers credit analysis, monitoring
financial ~ assets  measured  at of credit limits and bank guarantec
amontised cost.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow lorecasts Availability of borrowings facilities

Market risk - Forcign exchange Future commercial transactions,|Cash flow forecasling, sensitivity|Natural hedging for receivables and
recognised financial assets and|analysis. payables.
liabilities not denominated in Indian
rupee.

Market risk -Interest rate risk Short-term  borrowings at variable|Sensitivity analysis Maintaining a judicious mix of
rales variable and fixed rate debt

A. Credit risk
Credit risk is a risk where the counterparty will not mcet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to a financial loss. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with banks. as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding reccivables, other receivables and loans and deposils.

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to a risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company usually deals with creditworthy
counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The exposure is continuously monitored.

Provision for expected credit losses.
The Comapny’s financial assets mainly comprisc of investments, trade receivables, deposits with bank, loans & lcase deposits, The assessment of ECL is done as follows:

1) Loans and deposits:

[.0ans and Deposits have negligible or nil risk based on past history of defaults and reasonable forward laoking information. Loans and deposits comprises of mainly refundable
security deposits made on buildings (leased premises). Since these are assets with nil risk, the expected probability of default is "Nil%" and hence no provision for expected credit
losses are made in the financial statements.

2) Deposits with bank:

They are considered to be having negligible risk or nil risk, as they are maintained with banks having strong credit ralings and the period of such deposils is generally not
exceeding one year.

3) Trade receivahles and other dues from related parties
No significant expected credit loss provision has been created for trade receivables. Further, receivables are expected to be collected considering Lhe past trend ol no defaults and
that the balances are not significantly aged. Full provision is made for balances that management believes are credil impaired.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since iniiial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment, that includes forward-looking information.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade reccivables

Particulars Amount

Balance as at April 01, 2023 1
Charge for the year |
Utilisation/ reversal in loss allowance . -

As at March 31, 2024 2

Charge for the year M
Utilisation/ reversal in loss allowance -

As at March 31, 2025 1

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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25 Financial risk management (Continued)

®

(ii)

C

B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk where an entily will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. Prudent liquidity risk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. Dug to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability of required funds.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

Financing arrangements

The Company has access lo the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

] As at As at
Particulars Masrch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Expiring within one year (bank overdrafl and other facilities) = 82
B. Expiring beyond one year (bank loans) =

- 82

Maturities of financial liabilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant,

Contraclual maturities of financial liabilitics

Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5§ Total
vears
As at March 31, 2025
Borrowings 71 . . 71
Trade payables 21 . . 21
Other financial liabilities 20 = . 20
[.ease liabilities 92 351 - 443
205 351 - 555
Less than | year 1 to 5 years More than 5 Total
vears
As at March 31, 2024
Borrowings 48 - - 48
Trade payables 71 . - 71
Other financial liabililies 29 . - 29
Lease liabilities 103 492 25 619
251 492 25 767

Market risk
Market risk is a risk where the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and Habilities denominated in a currency that is nol the Company's functional currency (INR). The risk is measured through sensitivity analysis of probable movement in
exchange rate as at the reporting period.

The Comapny primarily imports materials which arc denominated in forcign currency which exposes it to foreign currency risk. The Company has a natural hedge in terms of its
receivables and payables being in USD. The Company also has risk in terms of translalion of its foreign operations. Further, any additional exposure is continuously monitored
and hedging options like forward contracts are taken whenever they are expected to be cost effective.

(a) Foreign currcncy risk exposure
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR as against respective loreign currency are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

HKD USD HKD usbD

Financial asset
Trade receivable ]
Capilal advances .
Advance o suppliers -

~
'

(2%

w

—_
o —

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) -

Financial liability
Trade payables |
Capital creditors - 0

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) - 1 19 36
5

Net exposure to foreign currency risk [assels - liahilities) - 1 (19 (11)

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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25 Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in exchange rates arising from foreign currency denominated financial instruments is given below.

Impact on loss before tax

As at
March 31, 2028

As at
March 31. 2024

USD Sensitivity
INR/USD - Increase by 5%
INR/USD - decrease by 5%

HKD Sensitivity
INR/HKD - Increase by 5%
INR/HKD- decrease by 5%

(|)

m
1

m
}

(ii) Interest rate risk

(a) The exposure of Company’s borrowings to the i rate changes at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Variable rate borrowings = 61

Fixed rate borrowings (including lease liabilities) 71 -

Total borrowings 71 61

(b) Profit & loss is sensitive o higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Impact on loss before tax As al As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis points - 0
Interest rates - decrease by 50 basis points - (1)}

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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26

27

(i

28

Business combination

Pursuant to the sale agreement dated March 14, 2024, the Company acquired the business of Koppal Toys Tooling Private Limited (KTTPL), a fellow subsidiary
of the Company, with effect from February 29, 2024. The total consideration for the acquisition was Z 35 million, payable three years from the date of execulion
of the agreement.

In accordance with the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations (Ind AS 103), this acquisition (being a common control transaction)
has been accounted for using the 'pooling of interests method'. Under this method, the assets and liabilities taken over had been recorded at their carmying amounts
and no adjustments were made to reflect fair values or recognise any new assets or liabilities. Further, an amount of Z 21 being the difference between the book
value of net assets taken over (2 40) and the fair valuc cansideration (Z 19) had been accounted for in the common control capital reserve account within other
equity.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved to initiate the winding-up of KTTPL by way of striking off its name from
the Register of Companies under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Removal of Names of Companies from the Register of
Companies) Rules, 2016 and, inter-alia, de-rccognized, in the books of KTTPL, the receivable from Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited towards the
consideration payable. Consequently, as at March 31, 2025, the Company derecognised the outstanding payable of ¥ 25 milion to KTTPL.

Capital management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, instruments entirely equity in nature and all other reserves -
attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

The Company's objectives while managing capital are to:

(i) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide retums to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders;
(ii Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio and is measured by nct debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)

Net Debt to Equity Ratio

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Net debt (refer note 35) 405 514
Total equity 267 429
Net debt Lo equity ratio 1.52 1.20
Commitments
As at As at

March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account net of advances and not

provided for:

(i) Property, plant and equipment 0 0

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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29 Related party disclosures

(A) Name of related parties and their relationship

Relationship Name of the related party
(i) Name of related parties where control exists.
Ultimate holding company : Aequs Inc ( 100% beneficially owned and controlled by the Melligiri Foundation)
Holding company : Aequs Limited (formerly known as Aequs Private Limited) (AL), India
(ii) Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year.
Subsidiarics : Aequs Force Technology Company Limited (AFTCL), Hong Kong (the entity has been
dissolved w.e.f. December 27,2024)
Fcllow subsidiarics : Aequs Engineered Plastics Private Limited (AEPPL)

- Aerostructures Manufacturing India Private Limited (ASMIPL)

: Aequs Consumer Products Private Limited (ACPPL)

: Aequs Toys Private Limited (ATPL)

: Koppal Toys Tooling COE Private Limited (KTTPL), struck off w.e.f. November 30, 2024
: Koppal Toys Molding COE Private Limited (KTMPL)

: Aequs Rajas Extrusion Private Limited (AREPL)

Enterprises in which individuals owning : Aequs SEZ Private Limited (ASEZ)

interest in the holding/ultimate holding : Industrial Knowledge Centre (IKC)
company/erstwhile joint venturers, or their : SQuAD Forging India Private Limited (SQUAD)
relatives have control or significant

influence

(iii) Key managerial personnel** :
- Dinesh lyer (upto August 07, 2025), Director
: Suraj Hukkeri (upto August 07, 2025), Director
: Basavant Annappa Patil (from August 06 2025), Additional Director
: Basavaraj Siddalingappa Sugandhi (from August 06 2025), Additional Director
: Chaitanya Vinayak Bhat (From July 17, 2024), Company Secretary

+*No transactions during the year
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Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions, exc
B. Transactions with related par

ties

ept share data, unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U28191KA2018PTC] 14901

For the year ended

Name Nature of transactions

AEPPL Sale of products
Sale of services 3
Sale of property,plant and equipment 14
Purchase of raw materials 6
Reimbursement of expenses paid 2
Reimbursements received -
Subcontracting expenses 0

AFTCL Impairement of investments -
Sale of investment 2
Gain on derecognition of investment 2

ASEZ Reimbursement of expenses paid 0
Interest expenses on lease liabilty ) 41
Repayment of lease liabilty 53
Surrender of lease liability 63
Services received 44
Security deposit paid -
Refund of security deposit 14

AL Reimbursement of expenses paid 0
Services received -
Reimbursements received 0
Sale of property,plant and equipment 0
Borrowings availed 70
Interest on borrowings 3
Repayment of loan taken -
Fair value of financial Suarantee received 1
Financial guarantee expense 3
Equity shares issued 50

(This space is Intentionally left blank)
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Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts are in INR millions, except share data, uness otherwise stated)

29  Related party disclosures (continued)

CIN: U28191KA2018PTC1 14901

B. Transactions with related partics (continued)

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

Name Nature of transactions For the year ended
March 31, 2025
ATPL Sale of property,plant and equipment 1
Sale of products 2
Expense incurred on behalf of related party -
Purchase of asset -
Cost of raw materials consumed -
Expenses incurred by related party -
IKC Service received -
Expense incurred on behalf of related party 0
KTMPL Sale of property,plant and equipment 4
Sale of products -
Cost of raw materials consumed -
Transfer of loan from KTTPL -
Repayment of loan given 4
[nterest income 0
Subcontracting expenses 0
KTTPL Acquisition of assets & liabilities -
Purchase consideration payable written off 35
ASMIPL Reimbursement of expenses paid 0
Sale of property,plant and equipment 0
ACPPL Expenses incurred by related party 0
SQUAD Expenses incurred by related party 0

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited CIN: U28 191KA20[8PTC] 14901
Notes to the financial statements

29  Related party disclosures (continued)
€ Balance g5 a¢ the year end

Name Nature of transactions
AEPPL Dues to related party 2 2
Trade payables - 0
Trade receivables 30 1
ASEZ Trade payables 0 5
Dues to related party - 0
Security deposits 124 139
AL Dues to related party 17 17
Dues from related party 0
Trade payables 6 6
Trade receivable -
Borrowings 70 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings l -
Unamortized financial guarantee - 2
ASMIPL Dues to related party - 0
AFTCL Investment in equity shares - 0
Impairement of investment - 0
ATPL Trade receivables 10 8
Dues from related party 0 0
Trade payables - 0
IKC Trade payables 0 0
KTMPL Dues from related party 0 -
Trade payables - 0
Trade receivables 3 -
Loan receivable - 4
KTTPL Trade receivables 0 -
Cosiderarion payable on acquisition - 35
AREPL Recoverable from related parties 0 -

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited CIN: U28191KA2018PTC] 14901
Notes to the findncial statement
(All amounts are in [NR millions, except share data. unless otherwise Stated)

30 Segment information

(a) Description of segments and principal activities
The Company is primarily engaged in a single line of business of manufacturing engincered toys. The Company's Chief Operating

Revenue from contract with customers

Particulars For the year ended|For the year ended|
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
India 18 78
Outside India
Hongkong 177 545
Others 17 -
Total 212 623
Note:

There are no non-current assets which are outside India.

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)




Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901
Notes to the financial statement
(All amounts are in INR millions, excep! share data. unless otherwise stated)

3

32

Q

Earnings per share

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(a) Loss per share (basic and diluted) (1.21) (1.58)
(b) Loss attributable to the equity share holders used in calculating basic and diluted 214) (247)
caming per share

Weighted average number of equity shares of Z 10 each 156,641,077 135,775,672

(c) Weighted average number of equity shares considered for basic EPS 176,966,377 156,100,972

Note :

(i) Ordinary shares to be issued under a mandatorily convertible instrument has been considered for computing basic EPS for the year.
(ii) There is no dilution to the Basic EPS as there no potentially dilutive equity shares outstanding.

Dues to micro and small enterprises

The Company has a process of identifying Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME), as defined under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), by requesting vendor confirmation to the letters circulated by the
Company. Disclosures of dues/payments to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to the extent such enterprises are identified by the
Company, based on the responses reccived from vendors against request for confirmations. This information has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
. Principal amount due to the suppliers registered under MSMED Act and remaining unpaid at 3 0

the end of each accounting year;
Interest due to suppliers registered under MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at the end of 0 0
each accounting year

. Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed 2 1
) I-nterést-paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the - -

MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED 0 0
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Amount of interest duc and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have 0

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year).

_ Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year - -
 Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until - -

such datc when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductiblc expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited CIN: U2819IKA2018PTC1 14901
Notes to the financial statement

(Al amounts are in INR millions, excepr share data, unless Otherwise stated)

33 Assets pledged as security
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current borrowings are below-
Current

As at I As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
A. Financijal assets:

- Trade receivables 95
- Other financial assets

B. Non financial assets:
- Inventories 218
- Other current assets

Total current assets pledged as security E 324
Non current ]
A. Financial assets:

- Other financial assets - 107

B. Non financial assets:
- Plant and machinery - 219
- Office equipment B 2
- Computer equipment

Total non-cu rrent assets pledged as security - 329
—_—
Total assets pledged as security = 653

Note : Total value of pledge asset iy restricted to the outstanding loan balance as at the balance sheet date,

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

(All amounis are in INR millions. except share data, inless otherwise stated)

CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901

34 Financial ratios

Ratios Numerator Denominator As at i bl Reason for
March 31, 2025 | March 31,2024 | variance variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabiljties 0.98 1.54 -36.69%, Note 2
Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholders' Equity 1.60 1.21 32.12% Note 3
Debt service coverage ratio (DSCR) [Eamnings available for Debt Debt Service (0.38) (0.30) 26.26% Note 4
Return on equity (ROE) Profi(Loss) after tax Average Shareholders' Equity -61.38% -70.70% -13.18% Note 6
Inventory tumover ratio Tumover Average Inventory 1.37 2.99 -54.04% Note 7
Trade receivables wmover ratio Credit Sales Average Accounts Receivables 291 7.30 -60.09% Note 8
Trade payables tumover ratio Credit Purchases Average Trade Payables 345 4.55 -24.18% Note 1
Net capital turnover ratio Tumover Working Capital (48.36) 5.22 | -1026.40% Note 5
Net profit ratio Net Profit/(Loss) after tax Turnover -100.78% -39.67%|  154.02% Note 9
Retum on capital employed (RoCE) Eamings before interest and tax Capital Employed -23.97% -19.16% 25.09%, Note 1
Retum on investment Earnings before interest and tax Average Total Assels -18.06% -15.70% 15.02% Note |

Notes:

9. Net profit ratio has decreased on account of reduced sales for the year.

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements

(All amounis are in INR millions, except share data, unless otherwise

CIN: U2819] KA2018PTC114901

stated)

35. Net debt reconciliation:

] As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 22 2
Bank balances other than above - 4
Current borrowings an (48)
Non-current borrowings - -
Lease liabilities (356) (472)
Net debt (405) (514)

Liabilities from financing activities
Particufars Cash and cash i I;)e.;a‘s? Non-cm.'rent Curr?nt Curr?nt Tt
equivalents iabilities borrowings borrowings borrowings
(working (related party
sapitalloan) |  logns)

Net debt as on April 01,2023 54 (520) (101) (70) - (637)
Cash flows (48) (48)
New leases/ new borrowings = . 3 - (95) 95)
Repayments - 48 - 22 - 70
Interest expense - (50) (2) (8) ) (62)
Interest paid - 50 - 8 2 60
Conversion to equity (refer note 9) - - - 95 95
Reclassification to equity - - 103 - 103
Net debt as on March 31,2024 6 (472) - (48) - (514)
Net debt as on April 01, 2024 6 (472) - (48) - (514)
Cash flows 16 - - - - 16
New leases/ new borrowings - B - (70) (70)
Repayments - 53 - 48 - 101
[nterest expense - 41) 2) 3) (46)
Interest paid - 41 - 2 2 45
Other non-cash adjustments - 63 - - - 63
Net debt as on March 31,2025 22 (356) - (0) (71) (405)
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Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited CIN: U28191KA2018PTC114901
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR millions. excepi share data. unless otherwise stated)

36 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 111

37.

(i) Details of benami property held: No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.
(ii) Wilful defaulter: The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(iii) Relationship with struck off companies: The Company has entered into below transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended March 31, 2025.

f . . . . —
Name of the struck Natufe of transaction Balance outstanding as at Relationship with th.e Balance outstanding as at March Relationship with the
with struck off struck off company, if .
off company March 31, 2025 . 31,2024 struck off company, if any
company any, to be disclosed
Matrix Plus Private
- 1 4 .
Limited Trade Payable Third party Third party
Shakun and Company
Services Private Trade Payable - Third party - Third party
Limited

(iv) Compliance with number of layers of companies: The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements: The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or
previous financial year.

(vi)(a) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behall of the ultimate beneficiarics

(vi)(b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Company shall:

i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(vii) There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

(viii) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(ix) The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the current or previous year.

(x) The Company does not own any immovable properties.

(xi) There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(xii) The borrowings obtained by the Company from bank have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.

(xiii) The Company was not required to recognise any provision as at March 31, 2025 under the applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025.

(xiv) The Group does not have any Core Investment Group (CIC)as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

Events occurring after balance sheet date
There have been no material subsequent events that require adjustment or disclosure other than those disclosed.

38, The linancial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on September 18.2025.

for BSR & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Aequs Force Consumer Products Private Limited
Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W 100022 CIN: U28191KA2018PTCI114901
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Sampad Guha Thakurta Basavamy Annappa Patil  Basavalaj Siddalingappa Sugandhi Chaitanya Vinayak Bhat
Partner Additional Director Additional Director Company Secretary
Membership No.: 060573 DIN:07626985 DIN:094022 16 Place: Membership No.: A61933
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